
1

Swyddog Cyswllt:
Maureen Potter 01352 702322
maureen.potter@flintshire.gov.uk

At: Cyng Dave Mackie (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorwyr: Janet Axworthy, Marion Bateman, Sean Bibby, Geoff Collett, 
Ian Dunbar, Mared Eastwood, Veronica Gay, Dennis Hutchinson, Tudor Jones, 
Brian Lloyd, Mike Reece, Paul Shotton a David Wisinger
+ 1 Swydd Wag

 19 Medi 2017
Annwyl Gynghorydd,

Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Newid Sefydliadol a 
fydd yn cael ei gynnal am 10.00 am Dydd Llun, 25ain Medi, 2017 yn Ystafell 
Bwyllgor Delyn, Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug CH7 6NA i ystyried yr eitemau canlynol

R H A G L E N

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU 
Pwrpas: I derbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau.

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD (GAN GYNNWYS DATGANIADAU CHWIPIO) 
Pwrpas: I derbyn unrhyw ddatganiad o gysylltiad a chynghori’r Aelodau yn 
unol a hynny.

3 COFNODION (Tudalennau 3 - 8)
Pwrpas: I gadarnhau, fel cofnod cywir gofnodion y cyfarfod ar 17 Gorffennaf 
2017.

4 TROSGLWYDDO ASEDAU CYMUNEDOL - ADOLYGIAD O GYNNYDD 
(Tudalennau 9 - 12)
Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol) - Aelod Cabinet dros Reolaeth 
Gorfforaethol ac Asedau

Pwrpas: I adolygu cynnydd y Rhaglen Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol cyn 
gwahodd grwpiau cymuned i gyfarfod yn y dyfodol i roi eu barn ar brosiectau 
unigol sydd wedi cael eu cwblhau yn ystod blwyddyn 2 y rhaglen

Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus



2

5 CYNLLUN Y CYNGOR 2017-23 (Tudalennau 13 - 60)
Adroddiad Prif Weithredwr - Arweinydd y Cyngor Aelod a'r Cabinet dros Gyllid

Pwrpas: I ystyried a chadarnhau targedau penodol a osodwyd o fewn Cynllun 
y Cyngor  2017-23, a dangosyddion perfformiad cenedlaethol.

6 RHAGLEN GWAITH I'R DYFODOL (Tudalennau 61 - 66)
Adroddiad Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Pwrpas: Ystyried y flaenraglen waith Pwyllgor Craffu & Trosolwg newid 
sefydliadol

DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD I WYBODAETH) 1985 - 
YSTYRIED GWAHARDD Y WASG A'R CYHOEDD

Mae’r eitem a ganlyn yn cael ei hystyried yn eitem eithriedig yn rhinwedd 
Paragraff(au) 14 Rhan 4 Atodiad 12A o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 (fel y 
cafodd ei diwygio)

Mae'r adroddiad yn cynnwys gwybodaeth fasnachol sensitif sy'n perthyn i 
drydydd parti ac mae budd y cyhoedd o beidio â datgelu'r wybodaeth yn 
bwysicach na budd y cyhoedd wrth ddatgelu'r wybodaeth 

7 ADOLYGU MODEL DARPARIAETH AMGEN HAMDDEN A 
LLYFRGELLOEDD (Tudalennau 67 - 128)
Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol.) - Aelod Cabinet dros Reolaeth 
Gorfforaethol ac Asedau

Pwrpas: Adolygu trefniadau sefydlu Aura Leisure and Libraries Ltd a 
dechreuodd redeg gwasanaethau hamdden, llyfrgelloedd a threftadaeth y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2017 

Yn gywir

Robert Robins
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd



1

PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU NEWID SEFYDLIADOL
17 GORFFENNAF 2017

Cofnodion cyfarfod Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Newid Sefydliadol Cyngor Sir 
y Fflint a gynhaliwyd yn Ystafell Bwyllgora Delyn, Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug 
ddydd Llun, 17 Gorffennaf 2017.

YN BRESENNOL: Cynghorydd David Mackie (Cadeirydd)
Y Cynghorwyr: Marion Bateman, Sean Bibby, Geoff Collett, Ian Dunbar, 
Mared Eastwood, Tudor Jones, Brian Lloyd, Mike Reece, Paul Shotton a David 
Wisinger

YMDDIHEURIADAU: Cynghorwyr Veronica Gay a Ron Hampson

CYFRANWYR: Cynghorwyr Billy Mullin, Aelod Cabinet Rheoli Corfforaethol; a 
Phrif Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol)

Ar gyfer cofnod rhif 9
Cynghorydd Tudor Jones, Cadeirydd Ymddiriedolwyr Canolfan Hamdden 
Treffynnon a Mr Chris Travers, Rheolwr Canolfan Hamdden Treffynnon.

Ar gyfer cofnod rhif 10
Steve W Jones, Cyfarwyddwr Rheoli Gwasanaeth Arlwyo a Glanhau NEWydd 
a Darren Jones, Cadeirydd y Bwrdd

ARSYLWYR: Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Swyddog y Pwyllgor

6. DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD

Roedd y Cynghorydd Tudor Jones yn datgan cysylltiad personol sy’n 
rhagfarnu ar eitem 4 ‘Trosglwyddo Ased Cymunedol Canolfan Hamdden 
Treffynnon’ gan ei fod yn Gadeirydd Ymddiriedolwyr y ganolfan hamdden a 
landlord y llyfrgell a’r caffi.     Roedd hefyd yn llofnodwr y Cytundeb Lefel 
Gwasanaeth ar gyfer defnyddio cyfleusterau chwaraeon yn Ysgol Treffynnon.    
Dywedodd y Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd y byddai’r Cynghorydd 
Jones yn cymryd rhan yn yr eitem fel cyfrannwr ac yn ymateb i unrhyw 
gwestiynau ond byddai'n gadael yr ystafell ar gyfer y bleidlais.    Yna byddai’r 
Cynghorydd Jones yn cymryd ei le ar y Pwyllgor ar gyfer gweddill yr eitemau ar 
y rhaglen. 

7. COFNODION

Cyflwynwyd cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 12 Mehefin 2017.

PENDERFYNWYD:

Cymeradwyo’r cofnodion fel cofnod cywir a’u llofnodi gan y Cadeirydd.

Tudalen 3

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 3



2

8. Deddf Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) 1985 – Ystyried 
gwahardd y Wasg a'r cyhoedd

PENDERFYNWYD:

Eithrio’r wasg a’r cyhoedd o’r cyfarfod ar gyfer yr eitem ganlynol gan ei bod yn 
cael ei hystyried yn wybodaeth wedi’i heithrio yn rhinwedd paragraffau 15 Adran 
4 Atodlen 12A Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 (fel y’i diwygiwyd).

9. TROSGLWYDDO ASED CYMUNEDOL CANOLFAN HAMDDEN 
TREFFYNNON

Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol) yr adroddiad i ystyried 
cynnydd Trosglwyddo Ased Cymunedol Canolfan Hamdden Treffynnon yn 
ystod tri mis cyntaf gweithredu ers trosglwyddo ar 31 Mawrth 2017.  

 Trosglwyddwyd yr adeilad a gweithwyr ac adleoliwyd y llyfrgell i’r 
ganolfan hamdden gan mai dyma’r trosglwyddiad ased mwyaf gan y Cyngor.  
Tynnodd y Prif Swyddog sylw at y dogfennau a oedd ar gael oedd yn dangos y 
broses gadarn ar ddiwydrwydd cynlluniau busnes hyd at bwynt trosglwyddo.    
Rhannodd fanylion y gefnogaeth refeniw a ddarparwyd gan y Cyngor ac arian 
cyfalaf a ddyrannwyd i ddelio gyda materion yn y dyfodol.  

Gwahoddwyd y Cynghorydd Tudor Jones (yn siarad fel Cadeirydd 
Ymddiriedolwyr y ganolfan hamdden) a Mr Chris Travers (Rheolwr y ganolfan 
hamdden) i roi eu safbwynt ar y cynnydd a wnaed ers y trosglwyddo.  

Diolchodd y Cynghorydd Jones i’r Prif Swyddogion Newid Sefydliadol ac 
amrywiol adrannau’r Cyngor am eu gwaith i gefnogi’r trosglwyddiad.    
Rhoddodd drosolwg byr o’i gyfraniad at y prosiect a chanmolodd y Cyngor am 
ymgysylltu gyda’r cyhoedd yn fuan.    Eglurodd bod yr oedi byr cyn trosglwyddo 
yn angenrheidiol i ddatrys materion a bod y ganolfan hamdden wedi aros yn 
agored yn ystod y trawsnewid.    Soniodd am sefydlu’r Bwrdd Ymddiriedolwyr 
aml-fedrus i gefnogi datblygiad y cynllun busnes a chanmolodd frwdfrydedd y 
gweithwyr a gyfrannodd at sefyllfa bresennol y ganolfan hamdden.  

 Canmolodd y Cynghorydd Ian Dunbar fenter y Cyngor ar Drosglwyddo 
Ased Cymunedol i helpu’r prosiect a chynnal asedau angenrheidiol ar draws 
holl ardaloedd y sir.    Cytunodd â’r farn mai llif arian a chynllunio busnes oedd 
y ddau brif ffactor.  

Mewn ymateb i ymholiadau gan y Cynghorydd Paul Shotton, cyfeiriodd 
y Cynghorydd Jones at ddysgu o fodel Trosglwyddo Ased Cymunedol Pwll 
Nofio Cei Connah.   Soniodd am yr ymgysylltu gyda Chynghorau Tref a 
Chymuned ac y croesawyd y gefnogaeth ariannol a gynigiwyd gan rai ohonynt.  
Hefyd canmolodd y gymuned am eu hewyllys da i gefnogi’r cyfleusterau fyddai 
o fudd i’r gymuned ehangach.    Aeth ymlaen i roi gwybodaeth am y cae bob 
tywydd a thelerau’r Cytundeb Lefel Gwasanaeth.  

Tudalen 4



3

Fel Rheolwr Canolfan Hamdden Treffynnon, rhoddodd Mr Chris Travers 
fanylion amrywiol brosiectau cyfalaf ar y gweill a chrynhodd y perfformiad 
ariannol hyd at 30 Mehefin 2017 a oedd yn dangos sefyllfa gyfforddus.  

Soniodd y Prif Swyddog am y buddion ar gael drwy drosglwyddo’r 
cyfleusterau cymunedol drwy gynnig oriau agor hyblyg a mynediad i arbedion 
fel rhyddhad trethi.  Talodd deyrnged i ymdrechion gweithwyr, y Bwrdd a 
chydweithwyr Undebau Llafur drwy ddod o hyd i atebion gwaith.  

Croesawodd y Cynghorydd Billy Mullin yr agwedd ‘gallu gwneud’ a 
ddangoswyd gan bawb oedd yn rhan o’r prosiect.  

Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd Mike Reece i’r wybodaeth a anfonwyd at 
Gynghorau Tref a Chymuned gael ei hanfon at Gyngor Cymuned Bagillt fel y 
ward gyfagos.    Awgrymodd bod y Pwyllgor yn ymweld â Chanolfan Hamdden 
Treffynnon mewn cyfarfod yn y dyfodol i weld y gwaith a wnaed yno.  

Croesawodd y Cynghorydd David Wisinger yr hyn a gyflawnwyd hyd 
yma a’r syniad o rentu gofod i wneud defnydd llawn o’r adeilad.  Ynglŷn â 
darparu ystafell gyfarfod newydd, awgrymodd y gellid gwneud ymholiadau 
ynglŷn ag argaeledd dodrefn swyddfa nad oedd yn cael ei ddefnyddio mwyach 
yn Neuadd y Sir.  

Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i’r cyfranwyr am y wybodaeth a rannwyd gyda'r 
Pwyllgor.  

Ar ôl datgan cysylltiad personol a chysylltiad sy'n rhagfarnu yn 
gynharach, gadawodd y Cynghorydd Jones yr ystafell gyda Mr Travers.  Ar ôl 
cynnal y bleidlais, dychwelodd y Cynghorydd Jones i gymryd rhan fel aelod o’r 
Pwyllgor ar gyfer gweddill yr eitemau.  

PENDERFYNWYD:

Bod y Pwyllgor yn cefnogi’r gwaith a wnaed mewn perthynas â Throsglwyddo 
Ased Cymunedol Canolfan Hamdden Treffynnon ac yn gwerthfawrogi’r gwaith 
gan swyddogion y Cyngor a Bwrdd a gweithwyr Canolfan Hamdden Treffynnon.  

10. MODEL CYFLAWNI AMGEN GWASANAETH ARLWYO A GLANHAU 
NEWYDD

Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog (Newid Sefydliadol) yr adroddiad 
diweddariad ar ddatblygiad Model Cyflawni Amgen ar gyfer Rheoli Cyfleusterau 
oedd yn arwain at drosglwyddo Gwasanaeth Arlwyo a Glanhau NEWydd i 
Gwmni Masnachu Awdurdod Lleol gyda Teckal Exemption. 

Rhoddwyd trosolwg o weithgareddau oedd yn arwain at sefydlu’r cwmni 
ar 1 Mai 2017.  Drwy ddefnyddio Teckal Exemption, roedd y cwmni yn eiddo i’r 
Cyngor ond roedd yn elwa o allu gweithio i raddau cyfyngedig gydag 
asiantaethau eraill.    Roedd diwydrwydd ar gynllunio busnes cadarn yn rhan 
o’r broses ac roedd Bwrdd aml-fedrus wedi’i sefydlu gyda chynrychiolwyr yn y 

Tudalen 5



4

gymuned leol.  Roedd system ariannol newydd wedi’i fabwysiadu i adlewyrchu’r 
gwahanol ffordd yr oedd y cwmni’n gweithio.  

Gwahoddwyd Mr Steve Jones, Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth 
Arlwyo a Glanhau NEWydd a Mr Darren Jones, Cadeirydd y Bwrdd i rannu eu 
barn ar gynnydd ers trosglwyddo’r cwmni.  

Yn ystod eu cyflwyniad, cyfeiriwyd at fudd set sgiliau cyfunol y Bwrdd i 
helpu i gefnogi datblygiad y cwmni.    Roedd yr oedi byr cyn y dyddiad lansio o 
ganlyniad i’r angen i fynd i’r afael â materion technegol a ddatryswyd drwy 
gydweithio effeithiol gydag adrannau’r Cyngor.    Dywedwyd bod symud y 
gweithwyr i’r cwmni wedi cynnwys canlyniadau cadarnhaol, ynghyd ag 
ymatebion gan ddefnyddwyr gwasanaeth y rhan fwyaf wedi eu cadw.     
Rhoddwyd adroddiad calonogol ar berfformiad ariannol yn erbyn targedau wrth 
gydnabod yr amcanion tymor hir i ddatblygu busnes a lleihau cymhorthdal.  
Byddai cynnwys ymgynghorydd i adolygu’r cynllun busnes hefyd yn helpu i nodi 
cyfleoedd ar gyfer cynnydd a rhoi cyngor ar faterion llywodraethu.

Yn dilyn awgrym gan y Cynghorydd Ian Dunbar, cafwyd trafodaeth 
ynglŷn â glanhau eiddo gwag.

 Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd Paul Shotton am drefniadau gyda phrydau 
ysgol a dywedwyd am y defnydd o ddulliau marchnata a chefnogaeth ar gyfer 
dewisiadau iach, tra byddai hyblygrwydd ar fframweithiau caffael yn helpu i 
fwyhau effeithiolrwydd.    Ar effaith posibl y dreth prentisiaeth, roedd y cwmni 
wedi cael gwybod bod hyn yn rhan o drefniadau’r Cyngor.    Ymatebwyd i 
ymholiadau’r Cynghorydd David Wisinger hefyd ynglŷn ag effeithiau posibl 
Brexit. 

Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn gan y Cadeirydd ar ffigurau a ddangoswyd yn 
adroddiad y Cabinet o Chwefror 2016, eglurwyd bod llawer o waith wedi'i wneud 
ar gyllid ers hynny.  

PENDERFYNWYD:

Bod y Pwyllgor yn cefnogi’r gwaith a wnaed mewn perthynas â throsglwyddo 
Gwasanaeth Arlwyo a Glanhau NEWydd i Gwmni Masnachu Awdurdod Lleol 
gyda Teckal Exemption. 

11. ADRODDIAD CANLYNIAD CYNLLUN GWELLA 2016/17

Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog yr adroddiad diweddariad i ystyried cynnydd 
ar gyfer cyflawni’r effeithiau yn y Cynllun Gwella 2016/17, gan ganolbwyntio ar 
y meysydd tan berfformiad sy’n berthnasol i’r Pwyllgor ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn.  

Roedd yr adroddiad yn nodi canlyniadau cadarnhaol yn gyffredinol gyda 
llithriad bach ar y Trosglwyddo Ased Cymunedol a’r Model Cyflawni Amgen fel 
yr eglurwyd yn gynharach yn y cyfarfod.      Nid oedd yr un o’r dangosyddion 
perfformiad chwarterol na meysydd risg wedi eu nodi’n goch.     Dywedodd y 

Tudalen 6



5

Prif Swyddog bod y meysydd yng Nghynllun (Gwella) newydd y Cyngor ar gyfer 
2017-23 oedd yn berthnasol i'r Pwyllgor o dan y flaenoriaeth 'Cyngor Cysylltiol'.

Holodd y Cadeirydd am y dyddiadau terfyn a statws cwblhau a 
ddangoswyd ar ddatblygiad mentrau cymdeithasol a dywedwyd y rhagwelir y 
byddai hwn yn brosiect tair blynedd.  

Yn dilyn cwestiynau gan y Cynghorydd Ian Dunbar, rhoddwyd 
diweddariad ar gwblhau Trosglwyddo Ased Cymunedol yn ystod y flwyddyn.  Ar 
Gam 4 Neuadd y Sir, hysbyswyd yr Aelodau nad oedd penderfyniad wedi’i 
wneud ond gwneir mwy o waith dros amser.  

PENDERFYNWYD:

Bod yr adroddiad canlyniad Cynllun Gwella 2016/17 yn cael ei nodi. 

12. RHAGLEN WAITH I’R DYFODOL

Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd y Rhaglen Waith 
i’r Dyfodol i’w hystyried.   Yn dilyn yr awgrym i’r Pwyllgor ymweld â Chanolfan 
Hamdden Treffynnon, sylwyd na fyddai hyn yn bosibl ar gyfer y cyfarfod nesaf.     
Byddai opsiynau ar gyfer lleoliad arall yn cael eu hystyried a gwahoddiad i’r 
Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol i fynychu ar gyfer yr 
eitem ar Fodel Cyflawni Amgen Gofal Cymdeithasol.  

Gofynnodd y Cadeirydd am farn ar lefel y manylion yn yr adroddiadau 
ac yn gyffredinol dywedodd yr Aelodau eu bod yn fodlon gyda’r wybodaeth.  

PENDERFYNWYD:

(a) Bod y Rhaglen Waith i’r Dyfodol fel y cyflwynwyd, yn cael ei 
chymeradwyo; a

(b) Bod y Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd, mewn ymgynghoriad â’r 
Cadeirydd yn cael amrywio’r Rhaglen Waith i’r Dyfodol rhwng 
cyfarfodydd, os bydd angen.  

13. AELODAU’R CYHOEDD A’R WASG HEFYD YN BRESENNOL

Nid oedd unrhyw aelod o’r cyhoedd na’r wasg yn bresennol.

(Dechreuodd y cyfarfod am 10am a daeth i ben am 12pm)

…………………………
Cadeirydd

Tudalen 7



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Monday 25h September 2017

Report Subject Community Asset Transfer – Review of Progress

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management and Assets

Report Author Chief Officers, Organisational Change

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Community Asset Transfer plan continues with this being the third year of 
implementation and support.

There have been some key large scale asset transfers notably Connahs Quay 
Swimming Pool now being run and managed by Cambrian Aquatics and more 
recently Holywell Leisure Centre, the largest and most complex asset transferred 
to date

The Council remains committed to supporting its CAT programme and has 
undertaken a number of year one reviews as part of its commitment to understand 
their ongoing commitment and contribution to Community Benefits.  

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That Members of Organisational Change Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee note the report and comment on and support the work 
undertaken in relation to the Community Asset Transfer programme of 
work.

2 Members note the supporting role Community Asset Transfer can play in 
developing Community Resilience and comment on how this might be 
developed in the future.

Tudalen 9

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 4



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE WORK UNDERTAKEN LAST FINANCIAL YEAR ON 
COMMUNITY ASSET TRANSFERS

1.01 Members will be aware that the Council formally re-launched its 
Community Asset Transfer (CAT) programme two years ago, since that 
time there has been significant progress in this area of activity. 

1.02 In times of austerity the Council sought alternatives to the risk of wholesale 
closure of assets and instead sought to offer assets to the community for 
local communities to manage, run and develop. It is up to the community 
to consider if they are interested and the Council is fully supportive with 
Flintshire Local Voluntary Council in supporting groups to develop plans 
for asset transfer.

1.03 There have been some key large scale asset transfers notably Connahs 
Quay Swimming Pool now being run and managed by Cambrian Aquatics 
and more recently Holywell Leisure Centre, the largest and most complex 
asset transferred to date.

1.04 Other assets which have progressed through legal completion or are in the 
final stages of legal completion include the following:-

 Argoed community centre and library (Café Isa);
 Bistre Youth and Community Centre;
 Connahs Quay Swimming Pool (Cambrian Aquatics)
 Connahs Quay Youth Club;
 Connahs Quay Allotments (Mill Lane);
 Connahs Quay Scouts Building;
 Connahs Quay Cricket Club;
 Former Registrar’s Office, Holywell;
 Greenfield Bowling Club;
 Gwernaffield Village Hall,
 Hope Library; 
 Holywell library (Toe to Toe);
 Holywell Leisure Centre
 Mancot Library;
 Maes Pennant Playing Field, Mostyn;
 Mold RFC;
 Mosytn Bowling Club,
 Scout Groups, various;
 Trelogan Community Centre;

1.05 The Council remains committed to supporting its CAT programme and has 
undertaken a number of year one reviews as part of its commitment to 
understand their ongoing commitment and contribution to Community 
Benefits.  These groups have had a Community Benefit report completed 
in addition a meeting with the relevant groups has taken place to review 
progress. Feedback from these group meetings about Community Benefits 
will form part of a further scrutiny session where it is proposed a number of 

Tudalen 10



groups attend and speak about their own projects.  At this stage no group 
has identified any major risks around their particular CAT or its ongoing 
viability.

1.06 In addition to the work detailed above these groups are developing wider 
skill sets within their local communities which are both transferable and 
which create community resilience.  This is an important concept and adds 
additional value to the CAT process and community creating more resilient 
communities which are able to support each other, through developing 
new skills, confidence and knowledge.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 A capital allocation of £500,000, agreed as part of the Capital Budget 
setting process, has been set aside for a further two years to enable 
groups to develop their proposal and draw down funding to undertake 
relevant building works to the assets that are being transferred.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 Reports have been submitted to Cabinet and Scrutiny at regular intervals, 
presentation made to interested groups through Flintshire Local Voluntary 
Council as well as County Forum.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 Risk - That an asset transfer is not sustainable in future years and the 
CAT fails.

Mitigation – A Community Benefit Agreement meeting is undertaken 
annually which explores future viability and benefits delivered.  In addition 
to this there is the ability to meet with Officers should need arise to discus 
concerns around current and future business sustainability.  In addition it is 
important to note that the freehold interest rests with the County Council 
who would if necessary step in and take the asset back and determine 
what action it would need to take at that point.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 None.

Tudalen 11



6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 No documents included but note that the Community Asset Transfer 
Guidance Notes can be found on the Councils website.

Contact Officer: Neal Cockerton and Ian Bancroft, Chief Officers, 
Organisational Change
Telephone: 01352 703169
E-mail: neal.cockerton@flintshire.gov.uk, ian.bancroft@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Community Asset Transfer
A Community Asset Transfer is the leasehold transfer of a Flintshire 
County Council asset to an organisation with a social purpose and plans to 
use the asset for the benefit of the local community. It is the transfer of the 
management and ownership of public assets (buildings or land) through 
the granting of a lease to a community based organisation who in return 
commit to providing community benefits via its use.

Tudalen 12

mailto:neal.cockerton@flintshire.gov.uk
mailto:ian.bancroft@flintshire.gov.uk


 ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Monday 25th September, 2017

Report Subject Council (Improvement) Plan 2017-23

Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance 

Report Author Chief Officer – Organisational Change

Type of Report Strategic

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Council (Improvement) Plan for 2017-23 has been reviewed and refreshed to 
reflect the key priorities of the Council for the 5 year term of the new 
administration.  

The super-structure of the plan remains the same as previous plans and now 
comprises of six priorities and relevant sub priorities.  The six priorities take a long 
term view of projects and ambitions over the next five years.

The Council Plan is published in a similar format to previous years highlighting 
objectives and actions to achieve within each sub priority and referencing national 
issues which have the potential to impact upon achievement of the priorities.  
These issues will also be referenced, where relevant, in the next refresh of the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2017-2020. 

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the Committee consider the targets and milestones in the Measures 
and Milestones document (appendix 2) the Council (Improvement) Plan 
2017-23 and provide feedback to Cabinet prior to adoption by the County 
Council for final publication.

Tudalen 13

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 5



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 COUNCIL PLAN 2017-23

1.01 It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 (the 
Measure) to set Objectives and publish a Council Plan.  It is a statutory 
requirement for the County Council to adopt the Council Plan.

1.02 The title of ‘Improvement’ Plan is changed to ‘Council’ Plan as the Plan is 
a combination of priorities service protection and growth and areas for 
improvement on current performance. 

1.03 Improvement Objectives and an accompanying Improvement Plan were 
first set and adopted by the Council in 2011.  For 2013-14 the Council 
thoroughly reviewed the priorities to streamline and reset them with clearer 
outcome based aims which continued through to 2016-17.  These have 
been reviewed again in light of the Well-being for Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 to reflect a more outcome based approach for the 
priorities themselves.  This has resulted in a revised set of six priorities 
supported by a structure of sub-priorities is proposed for adoption by the 
Council as follows:

Priority: Supportive Council
Sub-Priorities: 

Appropriate and Affordable Homes
Modern, Efficient and Adapted Homes
Protecting people from poverty
Independent Living
Integrated Community Social & Health Services
Safeguarding

Priority: Ambitious Council
Sub-Priority: 

Business Sector Growth and Regeneration

Priority: Learning Council
Sub-Priority: 

Modernised High Performing Education and Training

Priority: Green Council
Sub-Priority: 

Sustainable Development & Environmental Management
Sub-Priority: 

Support and enable safe and sustainable travel services

Priority: Connected Council
Sub-Priority: 

Developing and Inspiring Resilient Communities

Priority: Serving Council
Sub-Priority: 

Improving Resource Management

Tudalen 14



1.04 The Plan presentation remains largely unchanged, as it has been well 
received and commented upon favourably.  The main change has been 
the reduction from eight priorities to six.  National policy issues have been 
updated and listed within each relevant sub-priority.  These are issues 
over which we have little control and which may restrict successful and or 
timely delivery of our priorities. They are issues of national interest and 
have the potential to impact upon achievement of the priorities.  These 
issues will also be referenced, where relevant, in the next refresh of the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2017-2020. 

1.05 For each sub-priority for 2017-18 there has been a review based on:-

• the reasoning for the priority status;
• what we will do and how we will measure achievement; and
• the risks that will need to be managed.

1.06 The Council Plan in totality is presented as 2 documents that are inter-
related; firstly the draft ‘public’ version of our statements of intent around 
the 6 priorities and secondly the document that describes the targets and 
milestones (shown at Appendix 1) on which achievement will be 
measured.

These targets and milestones in the “How we Measure” document are 
being considered by the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committees prior 
to final agreement by Cabinet in September.  This will be the document 
that is used by Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny Committees to monitor 
progress during the year.  The “How we Measure” document that is 
relevant to this committee is attached at Appendix 2.  

1.07 The final Council Plan will be available as a web-based document 
published on the website before the end of September following 
endorsement by County Council.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 Resource implications have been considered during preparation of the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and will continue to be monitored during 
the regular budget monitoring and financial planning arrangements.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 All Overview and Scrutiny Committees have had the opportunity to 
consider and review the content of the draft Plan priorities including the 
opportunity to scrutinise targets set for 2017-18. A summary of the 
considerations will be appended in the September Cabinet and County 
Council reports.

Tudalen 15



4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 Delivery of the Plan objectives is risk managed within each of the sub 
priorities of the Council Plan and monitored and reported against quarterly 
by the Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

The risks to the statutory requirements of the Plan include: not publishing 
the plan within statutory timescales and, not adhering to the prerequisite 
content.

Both these risks are managed through adherence to well established 
procedures for i) publishing the Plan and ii) ensuring that the content of the 
plan reflects the requirements of the Measure.

An additional risk is that the Plan is not endorsed by Members; 
consultation with Members both individually and as part of the Scrutiny 
process allows for full engagement.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1: Draft Council Plan 2017-18 

Appendix 2: Proposed “How we Measure” document

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None.

Contact Officer: Karen Armstrong, Corporate Business and 
Communications Executive Officer
Telephone: 01352 702740
E-mail: Karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

7.02

Council Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of the 
Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 
2009 to set Objectives and publish a Plan.

Medium Term Financial Strategy: a written strategy which gives a 
forecast of the financial resources which will be available to a Council for a 
given period, and sets out plans for how best to deploy those resources to 
meet its priorities, duties and obligations. 

Tudalen 16

mailto:Karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk


Flintshire County Council

Draft Council (Improvement) 
Plan 2017 to 2023

Tudalen 17



Contents
Welcome to Flintshire County Council’s (Improvement) Plan for 2017 to 2023...................................................3

Setting Our Priorities and Judging our Performance .........................................................................................4

Priorities for the 2017/18 Council Plan..............................................................................................................5

Following the Plan – An Easy Guide...................................................................................................................6

What’s changed for 2017/18? ...........................................................................................................................6

Regulation, Audit and Inspection ......................................................................................................................7

Other Audit / Regulatory Activity ......................................................................................................................7

How Consultation Informs our Plan...................................................................................................................7

Council Plan and ‘How we measure achievement’............................................................................................8

Priority: Supportive Council..................................................................................................................................9

Sub-Priority: Appropriate and Affordable Homes ...........................................................................................9

Sub-Priority: Modern, Efficient and Adapted Homes ....................................................................................11

Sub-Priority: Protecting people from poverty................................................................................................13

Sub-Priority: Independent Living ....................................................................................................................15

Sub-Priority: Integrated Community Social & Health Services ......................................................................17

Sub-Priority: Safeguarding ..............................................................................................................................19

Priority: Ambitious Council .................................................................................................................................21

Sub-Priority: Business Sector Growth and Regeneration ..............................................................................21

Priority: Learning Council....................................................................................................................................24

Sub-Priority: Modernised High Performing Education and Training.................................................................24

Priority: Green Council........................................................................................................................................28

Sub-Priority: Sustainable Development & Environmental Management .....................................................28

Sub-Priority: Support and enable safe and sustainable travel services ........................................................30

Priority: Connected Council ................................................................................................................................32

Sub-Priority: Developing and Inspiring Resilient Communities.....................................................................32

Priority: Serving Council......................................................................................................................................35

Sub-Priority: Improving Resource Management............................................................................................35

Statement of Responsibility.................................................................................................................................38

Tudalen 18



Welcome to Flintshire County Council’s (Improvement) Plan for 2017 to 
2023
The new version of our Council (Improvement) Plan sets out our priorities for the forthcoming five years of the 
Council and what we aim to achieve. It does however focus on the objectives we intend to deliver during 
2017/18.  Flintshire prides itself on being a council which performs highly for its local communities and one 
which is motivated by a set of strong social values.

Flintshire is a well-governed and progressive council. We continue to perform well as a direct provider and 
commissioner of public services, and as a partner to others. Our recent track record in key services such as 
education, social care, housing, anti-poverty and environment show that we do deliver on what we say we will 
do.

Everything we do is important to someone, so selecting a set of priorities for the year is never an easy task. We 
have set six new priorities for the Council itself.  The Council’s new themed framework of six priorities has been 
developed to reflect the impact of the medium term financial strategy and protection of core services. Through 
our priorities we aim to make a real and noticeable impact.

We are under huge financial pressure during this period of unprecedented austerity.  Despite this we still aim 
high on our priorities.  If we fall short against our priorities it will be because of under-funding and not because 
we are not committed or are not capable.  For this reason we have changed the name of the plan from the 
Improvement Plan to Council Plan.

The plan sets out the Council’s six priorities and detailed sub-priorities for action, where we aim to achieve 
impact this year, page by page. An explanation for the choice of each one is given.  In addition we have also 
taken into consideration the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act by linking the impact statements to 
the Council’s well-being objectives. 

For 2017/18 a review of previous priorities and sub-priorities has been undertaken to set: -
 priorities that continue into 2017/18 for sustained attention;
 activities that can now be removed as completion of a time-limited piece of work which are now 

embedded;
 priorities which could be broadened to include more strategic issues e.g. ‘growing the local economy’, 

and sustainability of the social care market;
 emerging priority activities for 2017/18 e.g. managing local impact of the full service Universal Credit 

(UC) roll out .

Over the five year life of the Council, 2017/18 being the first year, the full set of priorities will be underpinned 
by the development of strategies.  As these are developed new measures and actions will emerge in future 
years.  

We hope that you find the Plan both informative and uplifting. Your feedback on the Plan itself, and on what 
we aim to achieve, would be very welcome.

 
Colin Everett Aaron Shotton
Chief Executive Leader of the Council

Tudalen 19



Setting Our Priorities and Judging our Performance

The priorities for Flintshire as a County are set by the Council and its local public sector partners. We work 
together as a Public Services Board (PSB) combining our resources for the benefit of Flintshire.

The sub-priorities shown with a (insert shaking hands symbol) symbol denote those we share with our partners. 
These have been selected for special attention where we believe that concentrated effort by the partners 
working together will make a big difference to the communities of Flintshire. These sub-priorities currently1 are: 

 Independent Living
 Integrated Community Social and Health Services
 Developing and Inspiring Resilient Communities 
 Safeguarding

Our Public Services Board partners include: Coleg Cambria, Natural Resources Wales, Public Health Wales, 
North Wales Police, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, Wales Probation, Flintshire Local Voluntary 
Council, North Wales Fire & Rescue Service, Coleg Cambria, Glyndwr University and Welsh Government.

The Council has also set a number of priorities for itself as an individual partner organisation. Setting priorities 
helps us focus our attention and resources on the things that matter most; these priorities are echoed in the 
Council’s business plans. We are legally required to set priorities known as Improvement Objectives (under the 
Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009). We call these our Council Priorities.

In setting our Council Priorities we have to take a number of factors into account from Welsh Government 
policy, to the expectations of our key partners, to our legal responsibilities, and to the views of local people.

We then set our targets, and judge our performance against them by using a wide range of information both 
quantitative (performance judged by numbers) and qualitative (performance judged by feedback, the results of 
consultation etc).

To ensure that we know how well we are doing in meeting the expectations for our priorities we have a series 
of ‘measures’ which we keep under regular review. These performance measures are set out for each of our 
priorities page by page. They are detailed more fully in the supporting document ‘How we measure 
achievement’.  Both these e-documents are linked together by hyperlinks.

Each of our sub-priorities is described individually on the following pages. We provide information about:
 The impact - what difference will be made
 Why the priority is important in 2017/18
 The national policy issues which impact on delivery of the sub-priority
 What we will do
 How we will measure achievement
 What risks we need to manage
 What some of our language means

We will let you know how well we have performed against our outcomes in two ways:
1) regular reports to the Council’s Cabinet and Scrutiny committees, and
2) next year’s published Annual Performance Report for 2017/18.

1 The priorities of the Public Services Board are currently under review as part of the development of the County’s Well-
being Plan, to be published April 2018

Tudalen 20



Priorities for the 2017/18 Council Plan (Shaking hands symbols to be inserted) 

Priorities for 
the 2017-18 

Improvement 
Plan

Ambitious 
Council

Learning 
Council

Green 
Council

Connected 
Council

Serving 
Council

Supportive 
Council

 Appropriate and affordable 
homes

 Modern, efficient and adapted 
homes

 Protecting people from poverty
 Independent living
 Integrated community social and 

health services
 Safeguarding

 Business sector growth 
and regeneration

 Modernised high 
performing education and 
training

 Sustainable development & 
environmental management

 Support and enable safe and 
sustainable travel services 

 Developing and 
inspiring resilient 
communities

 Improving 
resource  
management

T
udalen 21



P a g e  6 | 38

Following the Plan – An Easy Guide

The previous page sets out the Council’s six priorities and the sub-priorities which support them, where we aim to make a 
positive impact in 2017/18.

Each standing priority is illustrated with a different colour. For example, Supportive Council is amber and Ambitious 
Council is dark pink. This colour coding should make the priorities easier to follow as the reader works through the 
document and also the supporting document ‘How we measure achievement’.

On the graphic illustration we have set out against each priority the impacts we aim to make. Under each impact we list 
the sub-priorities where action and achievement will help achieve the impact. A sub-priority is simply a specific programme 
of work on a given theme. Taken together, success in achieving the aims of a set of sub-priorities will deliver the ambition 
for the bigger, standing priority of the same theme.

Every organisation has to prioritise its attention and its resources to make an impact. The Council has selected a number 
of the sub-priorities for special attention in the 2017/18 Council year. Each of these selected sub-priorities then has a 
dedicated page to itself later in the document.

For example on page 24 you will see the priority for Learning Council.
This has 3 impacts: -

 Providing high quality learning opportunities, and learning environments for learners of all ages.
 Supporting children and younger people to achieve their potential.
 Supporting learners from 3 to 18 years of age to aspire to high levels of educational attainment and 

achievement.

This impact has one sub-priority selected for attention in 2017/18. The reason for selection is explained on the dedicated 
page (pages 24): -
 

 Modernised High Performing Education and Training

What’s changed for 2017/18?

The Council Plan is now based on 6 new themes which are detailed as priorities.  The impact statements are our Well-
being objectives which outline our commitment to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.   

Tudalen 22



P a g e  7 | 38

Regulation, Audit and Inspection

As a public organisation the Council is regularly inspected to examine and challenge its performance and effectiveness. This 
work is mainly undertaken by a number of appointed bodies including Wales Audit Office (WAO), Estyn and the Care and 
Social Services Inspectorate (CSSIW).

The Council received a favourable Corporate Assessment from the Wales Audit Office in 2015 and has sustained a good 
level of progress and achievement in subsequent reviews and Annual Improvement Reports.  

CSSIW’s performance review of Social Services (June 2017) notes sustained progress in meeting the requirements of the 
Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014, with positive comments regarding the development of the Information, 
Advice & Assistance Service and the Early Help Hub.

CSSIW’s focus themes for last year were carers and adult safeguarding; implementation of the new safeguarding thresholds 
and guidance will continue as a priority into next year.

Other Audit / Regulatory Activity

The Council prepares an annual summary of all external audit and regulatory activity.  The last one was produced in May 
2017 and considered by the Council’s Audit Committee.

How Consultation Informs our Plan 

The priorities set for this Council Plan (and the former Improvement Plans) were, from the outset, based on a wide range 
of previous consultations in service areas with both partners and representative groups (e.g. community safety, anti-
poverty, education, economic development) and, in some cases, service users directly (e.g. housing). 

There has been no single intensive consultation exercise on the Plan itself, by local choice, given this background. Elected 
members, on behalf of the communities they represent, have contributed to setting the priorities of the Council and used 
their representative role to test the relevance of the Plan against local public opinion. This has been facilitated through the 
sharing of the draft plan with all elected members and through its presentation at Scrutiny Committees covering all service 
areas. Feedback has been used to develop this final version of the Plan. In addition, elected members have been consulted 
on the targets and milestones to be used to measure achievement of the Plan and ensure there is sufficient pace and 
ambition.

Consultation on all parts of the Plan is continuous with stakeholders and Welsh Government. The Council remains open to 
feedback on the plan and amending it at any time following receipt of feedback as well as through new service based 
consultations or local and national policy issues.

Tudalen 23



P a g e  8 | 38

Council Plan and ‘How we measure achievement’

These 2 documents are linked, with the ‘measuring achievement’ supporting document providing greater detail about 
the target performance and milestones we have set ourselves.  The documents are hyperlinked at the relevant pages, or 
this table can be used as a guide.

Improvement 
Plan Page
Numbers

Priority Sub-Priority Impact Corresponding page 
numbers in 'How 

we measure 
achievement'

9 - 10 Supportive 
Council

Appropriate and Affordable Homes Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality council housing of all tenures. TBA

11 - 12 Modern, Efficient and Adapted Homes Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality housing of all tenures

13 - 14 Protecting people from poverty Protecting people from poverty by maximising their income and employability TBA

15 - 16 Independent Living Making early interventions to support healthy and independent living TBA

Sustaining a local market of high quality and affordable service provision for 
those who are highly dependent on care support

TBA

17 - 18 Integrated Community Social & Health 
Services

Enabling more people to live independently and well at home TBA

Giving equal opportunity to all to fulfil their lives TBA

Providing joined-up services with public and third sector partners which 
support quality of life in communities and for individuals and families

TBA

19 - 20 Safeguarding Protecting people from the risk of any form of abuse TBA

Making communities safe places by working with partners to prevent crime, 
repeat crime and anti-social behaviour

TBA

21 - 23 Ambitious 
Council

Business Sector Growth and 
Regeneration

Sustaining economic growth through local and regional business development,
employment and training sites

TBA

Developing the transport infrastructure and employment sites and transport 
services, widening access to employment and training sites

TBA

Creating a supply of diverse and quality training and employment opportunities TBA

24 - 27 Learning 
Council

Modernised High Performing Education 
and Training

Providing high quality learning opportunities, and learning environments for 
learners of all ages

TBA

Supporting children and younger people to achieve their potential TBA

Supporting learners from 3 to 18 years of age to aspire to high levels of 
educational attainment and achievement

TBA

28 - 29 Green 
Council

Sustainable Development & 
Environmental Management

Enhancing the natural environment and promoting access to open and green 
space

TBA

Reducing energy consumption and using and developing alternative/renewable 
energy production

TBA

Maximising the recovery and recycling of waste TBA

30 - 31 Support and enable safe and 
sustainable travel services

Developing the transport infrastructure and employment sites, and transport 
services, widening access to employment and training sites

TBA

32 - 34 Connected 
Council 

Developing and Inspiring Resilient 
Communities

Supporting local communities to be resilient and self-supporting TBA

Committing to resilient service models to sustain local public services TBA

Widening digital access to public services TBA

35 - 37 Serving 
Council

Improving Resource Management Continuing to be a high performing and innovative public sector organisation 
with social values

TBA

Providing high quality, accessible, responsive and cost effective public services TBA

Tudalen 24



P a g e  9 | 38

Priority: Supportive Council
Sub-Priority: Appropriate and Affordable Homes

Impact: Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality housing of all tenures.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Prevent homelessness
 Meet the diverse housing and accommodation needs of the local population
 Develop more opportunities for people to access affordable rent and low cost home ownership
 Build the maximum number of Council houses possible as part of the housing supply solution
 Meet the Welsh Government target for all social housing to be brought up to the Welsh Housing Quality 

Standard (WHQS).

National Policy Issues:
 Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016
 Local Authorities to be able to access grant funding to support new build affordable and social housing
 Sufficiency of resourcing to fulfil the duties of the Wales Housing Act
 Capital limits on borrowing for councils to build new houses. 
 Maintaining the funding of Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) so that the council can meet the WHQS by 

2020 
 Maintaining current rent policy so that the council can achieve WHQS by 2020. 

What we will do in 2017/18:

1. Provide new social and affordable homes.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Delivery of HRA and NEW Homes Business Plans by: -

 Building 79 new Council and 62 new affordable homes through the SHARP programme
 Increasing the number of properties managed by NEW Homes to 144 in 2017/18
 Delivering options for new, innovative low rent housing schemes for under 35’s.

2. Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) investment plan targets achieved. 
Achievement will be measured through:
 Completing WHQS work schemes in line with the housing asset management strategy

3. Develop solutions to the increasing frequency of unauthorised gypsy and traveller encampments 
Achievement will be measured through:
 Agreed options appraisal identifying a range of measures to address this  

Risks to manage: 
 Homelessness will remain a growing area of demand due to the current economic climate
 The supply of affordable housing will continue to be the insufficient to meet community needs

Tudalen 25



P a g e  10 | 38

 Department for Works and Pension’s Welfare Reform Programme, including Universal Credit full 
service implementation which would place increasing demand on the Council for affordable and social 
housing

 Land supply for council housing construction
 Capital borrowing limits for council housing.

What we mean by:
WHQS: Welsh Government’s physical quality standard for modern social housing.
NEW Homes: North East Wales Homes and Property Management provide a service to increase housing 
options available to local residents.
HRA: Housing Revenue Account
Welfare Reform Programme: A strategy to manage the impact and implementation of welfare reforms in 
terms of employment, financial inclusion, and integrated support for the most disadvantaged. 

Tudalen 26



P a g e  11 | 38

Priority: Supportive Council
Sub-Priority: Modern, Efficient and Adapted Homes
Impact: Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality housing of all tenures.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Meet the needs of vulnerable groups including the need for adapted housing, Extra Care, Learning 

Disability and transitional social care beds/units
 Improve housing quality in owner occupied and private rented sectors
 Reduce the number of empty properties in the County
 Provide good quality housing for residents and maximise funding to improve homes.

National Policy Issues:
 Practical implementation of Welsh Government’s Rent Smart guidelines across the private rented 

sector in Flintshire.
 Influencing the direction of national funding priorities for housing regeneration.
 Funding levels needed to address poor housing quality in private rented and owner occupied sectors.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Improve standards within the private rented sector.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Working positively with private sector landlords to support growth of the sector
 Ensuring landlords and letting agents comply with the Rent Smart code of practice

2. Deliver the council’s housing growth needs.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Increasing the number of new affordable homes agreed through the planning system by 50 
during 2017/18

 Delivering 49 social and affordable homes through Welsh Government funding programmes 
 Increasing the number of new homes created as a result of bringing empty properties back 

into use

3. Meeting the housing needs of vulnerable groups.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Reducing the average number of calendar days taken to deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant
 Providing additional Extra Care homes:

o Constructing Flint Extra Care (Llys Raddington) providing 70 new units
o Confirming and agreeing plans for Holywell Extra Care providing 55 new units

 Working strategically to address housing needs of adults with learning disabilities and other 
vulnerable individuals.

 
Risks to manage: 

 Customer expectations for the timeliness of adaptations undertaken through disabled facilities grants 
may not be met due to competing demands on resources

 Availability of sufficient funding to resource key priorities.

Tudalen 27



P a g e  12 | 38

What we mean by:
SHARP: Strategic Housing and Regeneration Programme – programme to build 500 new council and affordable 
homes over the next four years.
Rent Smart: Service to process registrations and grant licenses to landlords and agents who are required to 
comply with the Housing (Wales) Act 2014.
Transitional Social Care: Transition from inpatient hospital and community or care homes.
Extra Care homes: Development of high quality apartments for rent to meet varying needs of support, some of 
which are specifically adapted for older people with memory loss or living with dementia.
Social Housing Grant (SHG): funds housing schemes that meet local needs and priorities as identified by local 
authorities including providing housing for rent or low cost home ownership through new build or the use of 
existing buildings.

Tudalen 28



P a g e  13 | 38

Priority: Supportive Council
Sub-Priority: Protecting people from poverty
Impact: Protecting people from poverty by maximising their income and employability

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Support people to manage the ongoing impact of Welfare Reform
 Help people claim the benefits they are entitled to
 Help people manage their financial commitments
 Reduce the risk of poverty amongst Flintshire households
 Reduce the impact of rises in fuel cost
 Help people access affordable credit
 Help people to manage their income, and provide support to access employment training.

National Policy Issues:
 Sustainability of funding for fuel poverty measures
 European Social Fund (ESF) Programmes affecting delivery of local targets
 Welfare Reform Act 2016
 Welsh Government approach to regeneration programmes.

 
What we will do in 2017/18:

1. Support Flintshire residents to better manage their financial commitments.
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Assisting people with Welfare Reform changes through the effective application of the 
Council’s Discretionary Housing Payment Policy

 Providing advice and support services to help people manage their income, including 
supporting people to access affordable credit and local Credit Unions

 Timely processing of Housing Benefit claims
 Assisting Flintshire residents to claim additional Social Security and Tax Credits to which they 

are entitled.

2. Manage local impact of the full service Universal Credit (UC) roll out.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Achieving the Homeless prevention target 
 Delivering the UC Operational board action plan
 Delivering Personal Budgeting and Digital Support Services.

3. Develop and deliver programmes that improve employability and help people to gain employment. 
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Developing an employability proposal as part of the Regional Economic Growth Bid to seek 
long term investment via a simple and cost effective programme of support

 Developing an enhanced careers and guidance service for North Wales to match young 
people to the labour market

 Increasing the number of local people who, following attendance on a programme report 
they are closer to work or becoming ready to enter work.

Tudalen 29



P a g e  14 | 38

4. Develop and deliver programmes to improve domestic energy efficiency to reduce Co2 emissions and fuel 
poverty. 

Achievement will be measured through: 
 Reducing the overall annual fuel bill for residents 
 Increasing the number of private sector and Council homes receiving energy efficiency 

measures 
 Securing Welsh Government ARBED3 Programme Funding by March 2018.

5. Develop a strategy to address food poverty. 
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Developing programmes in partnership with the social and third sector to work towards 
addressing food poverty

 Undertaking feasibility work for the development of a food-based social enterprise by 
December 2017. 

6. Assist residents of Flintshire to access affordable credit
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Develop effective partnerships with local Credit Unions to enable residents to access banking 
services and affordable credit.

Risks to manage: 
 Universal Credit Full Service roll out - negative impact upon FCC services 
 Demand for advice and support services will not be met
 Debt levels will rise if tenants are unable to afford to pay their rent or council tax
 The local economy will suffer if residents have less income to spend
 Residents do not take up the energy efficiency measures available
 Available funding for energy efficiency measures falls short of public demand.

What we mean by:
Welfare Reform: A range of measures introduced by Central Government to reform the Welfare Benefits 
system.
Discretionary Housing Policy: Aims to provide a fair and consistent approach to help customers who require 
further financial assistance with their housing costs.
Universal Credit Full Service roll out: a new way of paying benefits on a monthly basis; now being expanded to 
cover all claimants.
Regional Economic Growth Bid:  The proposals for economic growth in North Wales produced by local government, 
business leaders and the further and higher education sectors.
Credit Unions: Regulated financial cooperative which and subject to broadly the same scrutiny by the Financial 
Conduct Authority as any other bank or building society.  Credit Unions are also part of the Government backed 
Financial Service to provide loans and saving schemes.
ARBED 3 Programme: A programme to support our commitment to reducing climate change, help eradicate 
fuel poverty, and boost economic development and regeneration.

Tudalen 30



P a g e  15 | 38

Priority: Supportive Council
Sub-Priority: Independent Living

Impacts:  1)    Making early interventions to support healthy and independent living.
2)    Sustaining a local market of high quality and affordable service provision for those who are 

highly dependent on care support.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Help people to live independently as they get older
 Support people with dementia
 Develop a model of support for persons with a disability which enables independent living
 Support families to support each other to live independently
 Ensure the sustainability of social care models.

National Policy Issues:
 Implementation of the Social Services & Well-being Act (Wales) 2014
 Registration and Inspection Act
 Living wage issues for care providers
 Care market fragility
 Insufficient national funding to meet escalating social care costs
 Aging population locally and nationally
 Welfare Reform Act 2016.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Ensure care provision within Flintshire enables people to live well and have a good quality of life. 

Achievement will be measured through:
 Agreeing the business model to increase direct provision of residential care and sustain 

domiciliary care roles to support the wider market
 Supporting care home providers to ensure service sustainability
 Delivering dementia awareness training to the care homes workforce
 Working with Betsi Cadwaladwr University Health Board (BCUHB) to develop an action plan 

to support the quality and breadth of nursing provision
 Delivering a strategy for independent sector domiciliary care agencies to support service 

sustainability.

2. Support greater independence for individuals with a frailty and / or disability, including those at risk of 
isolation.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Adults who are satisfied with their care and support
 Implementation of a joint Community Resource Team with BCUHB which is able to offer 

advice and support through the single point of access
 Ensuring that the workforce are equipped to provide person centred care in line with the 

requirements of the Social Services and Well-being Act (Wales) 2014.

Tudalen 31



P a g e  16 | 38

3. Improve outcomes for looked after children.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Supporting children in stable, local placements
 Strengthening partnership working with BCUHB to ensure timely access to health 

assessments including CAMHS.

Risks to manage: 
 Population needs assessment indicates that demand will outstrip supply.

What we mean by:
Registration and Inspection Act: Registration process to ensure all social workers and social care workers are 
suitable for work in social care.
Welfare Reform Act 2016: A range of measures introduced by Central Government to reform the Welfare 
Benefits system.
CAMHS: Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services – NHS – Provision of mental health services for children, 
generally until school leaving age in the UK.

Tudalen 32



P a g e  17 | 38

Priority: Supportive Council
Sub-Priority: Integrated Community Social & Health Services
Impacts:  1)    Enabling more people to live independently and well at home.

2) Giving equal opportunity to all to fulfil their lives.
3) Providing joined-up services with public and third sector partners which support quality of life 

in communities and for individuals and families.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Work with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) to develop Health and Social Care models 

for the future
 Avoid unnecessary admissions to hospital and support early and successful discharges
 Co-ordinate the provision of support for service users more effectively with BCUHB and other providers
 Work together with BCUHB to support people with dementia within the local community
 Work with the Public Services Board to identify and engage families early, who are at greater risk of 

escalating needs.

National Policy Issues: 
 National trend for increasing demand on Children’s Services
 National focus on supporting integrated approaches between health and social care 
 NHS Service pressures and capacity
 Parity of funding between local authorities and NHS funded provision.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Ensure that effective services to support carers are in place as part of collaborative social and health 

services.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Increasing the number of carers identified through the single point of access 
 Increasing the number of Carers that feel supported
 Evidencing improved outcomes for carers
 Developing the Carers Action Plan.

2. Further develop the use of Integrated Care Fund (ICF) to support effective discharge from hospital and 
ensure a smoother transition between Health and Social Care services. 

Achievement will be measured through:
 Creating essential additional services such as Step Up/Step Down beds providing choice 

when leaving hospital
 Maintaining the rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons.

3. Establish an Early Help Hub, involving all statutory partners and the third sector.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Establishing the Early Help Hub to provide effective and timely support to families
 Reducing referrals that result in “no further action”.

Tudalen 33



P a g e  18 | 38

4. Further develop dementia awareness across the county.
Achievement will be measured through:

 The number of dementia friendly cafes in Flintshire
 Increasing number of dementia friendly communities in Flintshire.

Risks to manage: 
 Annual allocation of ICF - Short term funding may undermine medium term service delivery
 Unable to secure a multi-agency agreement for an information sharing protocol across all agencies.

What we mean by: 
Integrated Care Fund (ICF): Funding from Welsh Government being used to support older people to maintain 
their independence and remain in their own home for as long as possible.
Looked After Children: Children who are being looked after by their local authority, including with foster 
parents, at home with their parents under the supervision of social services, in residential children's homes or 
in other residential settings like schools or secure units.
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS): NHS-provided mental health services for children, 
generally until school-leaving age, in the UK.
Early Help Hub: The newly developed multi-agency Hub in Flintshire.  The Hub provides a collective response to 
support families with greater needs to build their resilience and wellbeing.
Step Up/Step Down beds: Step-down beds are used for people who are not well enough to move from hospital 
straight to their home, but don’t need to be in an acute hospital bed.  Step-down beds are usually provided by care 
homes, and provide care for the interim period until the person is well enough to return home.  Similarly, these beds can 
be used as a “step up” for people who become ill enough to need care, but don’t need to be in an acute hospital 
environment.

Tudalen 34



P a g e  19 | 38

Priority: Supportive Council
Sub-Priority: Safeguarding
Impacts:  1)   Protecting people from the risk of any form of abuse.

2) Making communities safe places by working with partners to prevent crime, repeat crime and 
anti-social behaviour.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Have a Council wide approach to safeguard and protect vulnerable people
 Develop further awareness and support for the Council’s approach to safeguarding including the 

prevention of human trafficking, modern slavery and child sexual exploitation (CSE)
 Comply with the new codes of practice for Safeguarding within the Social Services and Well-being Act 

(Wales) 2014
 Ensure the wider council workforce are aware of the Council’s approach to Safeguarding
 Develop a consistent approach to regional collaboration for Community Safety
 Support achievement of the regional priorities set by the Police and Crime Commissioner. 

National Policy Issues: 
 Implementation of the Social Services and Well-being Act 2014
 Development of the National Safeguarding Board and structures
 Management of response to Child Sexual Exploitation
 Sustainability of short-term grant funded schemes.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Strengthen arrangements within all council portfolios to have clear responsibilities to address 

safeguarding.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Increasing referral rates from within Council services other than Social Services
 Completion of the online child and adult safeguarding module
 Council officers completing safeguarding awareness training
 Embedding processes and best practice across the council
 Reviewing corporate service policies and procedures to identify breadth and depth of 

safeguarding coverage
 Implement the safeguarding policy across all Council Services.

2. Ensure that our response rates to referrals remain within statutory targets.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Meeting statutory procedural targets for child and adult protection.

3. Preventative approach towards Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE).
Achievement will be measured through:

 Delivering a corporate plan linked to regional work to combat CSE

Tudalen 35



P a g e  20 | 38

4. Identify and address the signs and symptoms of domestic abuse and sexual violence.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Implementing training for Council employees to meet the requirements of the Domestic 
Abuse and Sexual Violence National Training Framework

 Delivering the level 1 training programme for all Council employees.

5. Strengthen regional community safety through collaboration and partnership arrangements.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Adopting and achieving the priorities of the North Wales Safer Communities Board Plan 
through formulation of a local delivery plan, which also includes locally identified priorities, 
and overseen by the Public Services Board.

Priorities of the North Wales Safer Communities Board include:
 Domestic Abuse
 Modern Slavery
 Organised Crime
 Sexual Abuse (Including Child Sexual Exploitation)
 Delivering Safer Neighbourhoods

6. Ensure we meet the requirements of the North Wales Contest Board.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Develop a plan to identify and monitor progress of the prevent duties as outlined within the 
Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015

Risks to manage: 
 Rate of increase of adult safeguarding referrals will outstrip current resources
 Refocusing resources within the Safeguarding Unit is likely to increase the backlog of DoLS assessments
 Knowledge and awareness of safeguarding not sufficiently developed in all portfolios
 Failure to implement training may impact on cases not being recognised at an early stage.

What we mean by:
Child sexual exploitation (CSE): a type of sexual abuse in which children are sexually exploited for money, 
power or status. Children or young people may be tricked into believing they're in a loving, consensual 
relationship. They might be invited to parties and given drugs and alcohol, and may also be groomed online.
Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act 2014 (SSWB): An Act to reform social services law to make 
provision about improving well-being outcomes. 
Prevent Duty: Forms 1 of the 4 stands of the Government’s Counter Terrorism Strategy, known as ‘Contest’.  
The object of this strand is to prevent individuals from within communities becoming radicalised.  The Counter 
Terrorism and Security Act 2015 place statutory requirement on local authorities to meet what is known as 
‘The Prevent Duties’ necessitating the need for effective processes and mechanisms to prevent radicalisation. 
Police and Crime Commissioner: The North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner is the local governing body 
for policing in our area, and the role replaced North Wales Police Authority. The Commissioner has an 
overarching duty to secure an efficient and effective police force, which demonstrates value for money and, 
above all, cuts crime. 

Tudalen 36



P a g e  21 | 38

Priority: Ambitious Council
Sub-Priority: Business Sector Growth and Regeneration

Impacts:  1)   Sustaining economic growth through local and regional business development,
      employment and training sites.
2) Developing the transport infrastructure and employment sites and transport services, widening 

access to employment and training sites
3) Creating a supply of diverse and quality training and employment opportunities.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Continue to grow the local and regional economy
 Secure infrastructure investment needed to facilitate growth both regionally and locally
 Continue to build upon the success of the advanced manufacturing sector in Flintshire
 Protect the economic viability of our town centres and rural areas providing focus on the wider 

economic growth approach and, housing and employment impact
 Work collaboratively to achieve key priorities for major infrastructure projects which will support 

economic growth projects
 Develop transport access solutions for our key employment sites

National Policy Issues: 
 Confirmed support for growth deals following the general election 
 Devolution of powers to support economic growth in North Wales: opportunity and possible threat if 

powers are insufficient and do not match those across the UK
 Infrastructure investment to create the platform for advancing economic growth 
 Uncertainty over Welsh Government approach to regeneration  

What we will do in 2017/18: 
1. The Regional Economic Growth Deal will be submitted to UK and Welsh Governments this year and will 

set out the main priorities for economic development across North Wales.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Contributing to the development of a new governance framework for the North Wales 
Economic Ambition Board

 The Council playing its parts in the agreement of a Regional Growth Deal with the UK and 
Welsh Governments

 Developing a strategy for delivery of the parts of the Regional Growth Deal which will 
directly benefit Flintshire

 Developing the Local Development Plan (LDP) economic strategy
 Supporting the development of the Wales Advanced Manufacturing Institute by Welsh 

Government with a successful planning application.

Tudalen 37



P a g e  22 | 38

2. Guide the development of the Deeside Enterprise Zone (DEZ) and Northern Gateway mixed use 
development site. Ensure that the developments maximise economic and social value for the County and 
that they deliver the commitments made in the Regional Economic Growth Deal.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Providing clear and responsive guidance to potential developers within the DEZ and 

Northern Gateway
 Seeking a revised strategic framework from the Northern Gateway developers
 Completing phase 1 enabling works by Welsh Government
 Securing Welsh Government agreement for phase 2 and / or phase 3 enabling works.

3. Develop long term strategic approach to Council’s economic estate and land.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Completing a review of the Council’s economic estate and land.

4. Expand the scale and quality of apprenticeships both regionally and locally and make best use of the  
Apprenticeship Training Levy (ATL) 

Achievement will be measured through: 
 Ensuring apprenticeships feature in the Regional Economic Growth Deal proposal.

5. Develop a new approach to supporting town centre vitality and regeneration that maximises their role as 
shop windows for the County and enables them to derive benefit from wider economic growth.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Developing and agreeing a multi-agency plan
 Identifying options to develop new land uses in town centres, especially for residential use.

6. Ensure that the development of regional and local transport strategy and initiatives maximises their 
potential for economic benefits, especially access to employment.

Achievement will be measured through: 
 Ensuring that transport infrastructure features in the Regional Economic Growth Deal 

proposal
 Implementing the Deeside Plan to co-ordinate transport and economic development 

programmes.

Tudalen 38



P a g e  23 | 38

Risks to manage:
 Infrastructure investment does not keep pace with needs and business is lost to the economy
 Support for businesses in Flintshire doesn’t meet their needs and fails to encourage investment.

What we mean by: 
Northern Powerhouse: A collaboration concerned with redressing the North-South economic imbalance, 
aiming to attract investment into northern cities and towns. 
LDP Strategy: Delivering sustainable development in the County from 2017 – 2030.
Regional Economic Growth Deal: The North Wales Economic Ambition Board proposal to UK and Welsh 
Governments to create new employment and housing.
Apprenticeship Tax Levy:  The Apprenticeship Levy is a UK-wide employment tax introduced by the UK 
Government that came into force on 6 April 2017. The Levy applies to all UK employers, and employers with an 
annual ‘pay bill’ of £3 million or more will have to pay the Levy.

Tudalen 39



P a g e  24 | 38

Priority: Learning Council
Sub-Priority: Modernised High Performing Education and Training
Impacts:  1)   Providing high quality learning opportunities, and learning environments for 

            learners of all ages.
2) Supporting children and younger people to achieve their potential.
3) Supporting learners from 3 to 18 years of age to aspire to high levels of educational attainment 

and achievement. 

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Utilise resources effectively to achieve the best possible educational outcomes
 Support the national Welsh Government priorities to improve literacy and numeracy outcomes and 

reduce the impact of poverty on educational attainment
 Improve digital literacy and skills to deliver digital curriculum and enable access to modern employment 

and economic development opportunities
 Work collaboratively to develop national reforms to curriculum, assessment and professional 

development models
 Work effectively with partners across the region to secure efficiency and improved outcomes from 

educational improvement programmes
 Reduce barriers to engagement, ensure equality of access and participation opportunities  
 Make more efficient use of education resources through programmes of School Modernisation
 Engage young people more fully

National Policy Issues:
 Sustainability of Welsh Government short term grant funding  
 Rationalisation of the provision, planning and accountability processes for education related specific 

grants
 Affordability of the 21st Century Schools programme  
 Simplification of the process for school place planning and provision
 Additional learning needs reforms
 Increase in national child care offer
 European funding schemes
 Capital provision for schools’ repair and maintenance
 Inadequate revenue funding for schools.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Develop Education and Integrated Youth Services by:
 Continuing to work with the Regional School Improvement Service (GwE) to: -

 Provide support and challenge to all schools to achieve the best possible educational outcomes for 
all learners;

 Identify and target support for those schools most in need;
 Develop the capacity of schools to respond to national initiatives and curriculum reforms;  
 Improve skills in digital literacy, literacy and numeracy.

Tudalen 40



P a g e  25 | 38

 Implementing proposed reforms for the portfolio Pupil Referral Unit provision
 Embedding Welsh in the Education Strategic Plan
 Developing an effective local approach to national inclusion reforms 
 Developing strategies to support broader well-being needs of children and young people
 Improving outcomes in Foundation Phase 
 Maintain relative performance in Mathematics, English/Welsh 1st Language and Core Subject Indicators 

at KS2 and KS3
 Improving outcomes in Key Stage 4
 Raising standards achieved by learners who are entitled to free school meals
 Improving attendance 
 Developing an effective local approach to national inclusion reforms
 Developing a sustainable strategy for the Flintshire Music Service
 Maintaining levels of 16 year olds in education, employment and training above benchmark position
 Further developing the Youth Engagement and Progression work programme for learners in danger of 

disengaging through: 
Achievement will be measured through:

 Delivering and embedding the Families First Programme and Flintshire’s Integrated Youth 
Services Strategy “Delivering Together”

 Targeting vocational and employability skills
 Enhancing personal support, including coaching, mentoring and help with transition
 Realising the benefits of regional European Social Fund programmes

 Measuring reduction in first time entrance to the youth justice system 

 Improving the number of hours in education, training or employment that young people in the 
youth justice system can access; and

 Improving outcomes for targeted groups of vulnerable learners, e.g. Looked After Children and 
young people exiting the Youth Justice System

 Create a vibrant Youth Council to provide meaningful input from Flintshire young people to our 
democratic process.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Creating a delivery plan for the launch of the young peoples’ council by October 2017.

 Developing and implementing a plan for the next phase of Schools Modernisation, through the 21st 
Century School programme

Achievement will be measured through:
 Completing key milestones in the Schools Modernisation programme 

 Maintaining a schedule of repairs and maintenance of school buildings
Achievement will be measured through:

 By maintaining an annual repairs and maintenance programme of school buildings through the 
Council’s Capital programme.

Tudalen 41



P a g e  26 | 38

2. Enhance skills to improve employment opportunities by:- 
 Working with the public, private and voluntary sectors to maximise the number of apprenticeships, 

traineeships and work experience opportunities
 Increasing training and apprenticeship opportunities through the Futureworks Flintshire 

Apprenticeship Academy and major capital programmes
 Strengthening and cultivating attractive routes into education for the workforce  
 Embedding regional skills strategy for Science, Technology, English and Maths (STEM).
 Securing schools’ active participation in events and activities to promote the development of young 

people’s work-related skills
Achievement will be measured through:

 Improving the local skills base to improve employability and earning prospects through 
improved qualifications  

 Reducing the number of 18 – 24 year olds claiming Jobseekers Allowance.

3. Implementing the Welsh Government pilot of the 30 hour childcare offer by:-
 Implementation of the Childcare Pilot project plan from October 2017
Achievement will be measured through:

 Number of registered settings to deliver the ‘offer’
 Number of children accessing the ‘offer’.

4. Families First Collaborative Programme
 Implementation of a Collaborative Families First strategy from 2017 - 2020
Achievement will be measured through:

 Develop a fully Commissioned collaborative Families First  
 Number of young people accessing the ‘offer’.

Risks to manage: 
 Those schools who do not recognise their need for improvement and external support
 Leadership capacity does not match school needs
 Impact of Additional Learning Needs reforms 
 Local employers and learning providers do not work closely enough to identify and meet the skills based 

needs of the future
 Sustainability of funding streams.  
 Numbers of school places not matching the changing demographics
 Limited funding to address the backlog of known repair and maintenance works in Education & Youth 

assets

Tudalen 42



P a g e  27 | 38

What we mean by:
Regional School Improvement Service (GwE): School Effectiveness and Improvement Service for North Wales, 
works alongside and on behalf of the Local Authorities to develop excellent schools across the region.
European Social Fund (ESF) Programmes: To increase the employability of local people (aged 25 and over) who 
have complex barriers to employment. 
Core Subject Indicator: Learners achieve the expected level in Mathematics, English or Welsh 1st language and 
Science.
21st Century Schools: A national programme of funding to improve school buildings and environments.
School Modernisation: The process by which the Local Authority ensures there are a sufficient number of high 
quality school places, of the right type in the right locations
Youth Justice Service: Aims to prevent children and young people under 18 from offending or re-offending.
Childcare Offer:  Welsh Government initiative to offer working parents of 3-4 year olds 30 hours of funded 
early education and childcare per week (up to 48 weeks of the year).

Tudalen 43



P a g e  28 | 38

Priority: Green Council
Sub-Priority: Sustainable Development & Environmental Management
Impacts:  1)    Enhancing the natural environment and promoting access to open and green space.

2) Reducing energy consumption and using and developing alternative/renewable energy 
production. 

3) Maximising the recovery and recycling of waste.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 

 Address the requirements of the sustainable development principles of the Well-being of Future 
Generations Act and Environment Bill

 Balance the need for sustainable development with the protection of the natural environment
 Continue to reduce our carbon emissions to meet Welsh Government targets and play our part in helping 

to address the consequences of climate change.

National Issues:
 Reduction of the Single Environment Grant whilst delivering the priority area of natural resource 

management
 Reliance on external funding for large scale developments
 Government cap on financial support for solar farms
 Capacity and funding to address flood risks.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Improve, protect and enhance the built environment.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Adoption of a Local Heritage Strategy.

 
2. Manage our natural environment and accessible green-space networks to deliver health, well-being and 

resilience goals.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Reviewing the rights of way improvement plan
 Delivering projects set out within the ESD grant application including flood defence, 

biodiversity duty and green-space enhancement

3. Maximise the potential of the Council’s estate and assets for energy efficiency and renewable energy 
production, reducing the reliance on fossil fuels.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Delivery of the renewable energy plan for the Council’s estates and assets which was 
adopted in 2015

 Increasing usage of environmentally efficient vehicles
 Reduction in carbon emissions.

Tudalen 44



P a g e  29 | 38

4. Maximise the recovery and recycling of waste with a view to reducing the reliance on landfill.
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Improving recycling performance
 Recycling rates per Household Recycling Centre (HRC)
 Modernisation of the HRC site network.

5. Strengthen regional air quality collaboration to help promote better health and well-being outcomes.
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Developing a regional strategic approach to the collation of air quality data.  

6. Identification of the Local Development Plan preferred strategy.
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Adoption of the Local Development Plan to support Sustainable Development & 
Environmental Management.

Risks to manage: 
 Reduction of the Single Environment Grant
 Limitations on suitable Council sites with sufficient area for larger scale renewables schemes and 

suitable connections to the electric grid
 Funding will not be secured for priority flood alleviation schemes
 Customer expectations around the delivery of flood alleviation schemes are not effectively managed
 Lack of holistic air quality data across the region leading to on cost for the Council to manage its own 

review.

What we mean by:
Well-being of Future Generations Act and Environment Bill: Welsh Government (WG) approaches to 
managing the country’s natural resources.
Single Environment Grant: A WG grant to support integrated delivery of natural resource management, waste 
and resource efficiency and local environmental quality.
LDP Strategy: Delivering sustainable development in the County from 2017 – 2030.
Local Heritage Strategy: To ensure that the distinct heritage of Flintshire County is fully appreciated and 
recognised, and enhanced for the overall benefit of the community.
ESD Grant (Environment and Sustainable Development):  A Welsh Government grant to support integrated 
delivery of natural resource management, waste & resource efficiency and local environmental quality.
Civic Amenity Site Network: A network of collection spaces at fixed locations to increase recycling and raise 
awareness of the positive impact of selective collection.
Single Air Quality Review and Assessment: A strategy which aims to protect people’s health and the 
environment under the provisions of the Environment Act 1995 

Tudalen 45



P a g e  30 | 38

Priority: Green Council
Sub-Priority: Support and enable safe and sustainable travel services

Impact: Developing the transport infrastructure and employment sites, and transport services, widening 
access to employment and training sites.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Enable people to access key services and link communities across Flintshire
 Minimise congestion and delays on our highway network
 Maximise the benefits of available funding
 Include local transport solutions in the regional Economic Growth Deal bid.

National Policy Issues:
 Uncertainty of future grant funding
 Rail franchise renewal
 Impact of major road and rail infrastructure decisions
 Reductions in bus subsidies
 Outcomes of regional Economic Growth Bid deal

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Access and use available grant funding to support Council priorities for accessing employment, health, 

leisure and education.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Successfully delivering projects and services through national grant funded schemes
o Local transport fund 
o Rural Communities and Development Fund
o Road Safety
o Safe Routes
o Bus Service Support Grant
o Active Travel integrated network map

 Development of sub-regional and Metro inter-modal transport projects.

2. Prioritise the Council’s road infrastructure for repairs and maintenance and implement programmes of 
work within available funding in order to improve the resilience, efficiency and reliability of the 
transport network. 
Achievement will be measured through:

 Monitoring the condition of the highway’s infrastructure
 Undertaking inspections to ensure reinstatements meet the required standards and raise the 

standard of works undertaken on Flintshire’s network
 Delivery of the Highways Asset Management Plan.

3. Work closely with the communities to develop innovative and sustainable community based transport 
schemes.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Development of community based transport schemes within available funding.

Tudalen 46



P a g e  31 | 38

 Developing and supporting community based transport schemes to complement the core 
network of bus services 

4. Deliver a compliant, safe and integrated transport service.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Increasing the number of financially compliant contracts
 Increasing the number of safety compliant checks
 Ensure safety compliant checks for transport services are maintained.

Risks to manage: 
 Sufficient funding to ensure our highways infrastructure remains safe and capable of supporting 

economic growth
 Sufficient funding will not be found to continue to provide subsidised bus services.
 Supply chain resilience
 Adverse weather conditions on the highway network
 Lack of community support for transport options.

What we mean by:
Infrastructure: Facilities, systems, sites and networks that are necessary for the County to function.
“Active Travel”: Walking or cycling as an alternative means to motorised transport for the purpose of making 
every day journeys.
Community Transport: Passenger transport schemes which are owned and operated by local community 
groups.
Commercial bus services: Following changes made in the 1980s, the majority of local bus services in Wales are 
commercially operated by bus companies.
Regional Economic Growth Deal bid: the North Wales Economic Ambition Board proposal to UK and Welsh 
Governments to create new employment and housing.

Tudalen 47



P a g e  32 | 38

Priority: Connected Council 
Sub-Priority: Developing and Inspiring Resilient Communities
Impact:  1)   Supporting local communities to be resilient and self-supporting.

2) Committing to resilient service models to sustain local public services.
3) Widening digital access to public services.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Build on what has been completed in 2016/17 with support for local communities.  In year two this will 

concentrate on:

 Developing the community and social sectors to support local communities to be more self-
sufficient

 Creating alternative delivery models within the community and social sector to sustain valued 
public services

 Developing social enterprises, who are able to act for the benefit of local communities and create 
both employment and economic opportunities

 Realising social benefits in the community e.g. increasing volunteering and training opportunities 
for young people; keeping local money in the community.

 Ensuring our Armed Forces Community and their families are recognised for their commitment.

National Policy Issues:
 Lack of support programmes for the development of alternative delivery models
 Role of Town and Community Councils in cooperative working and local governance as detailed in the 

Local Government Bill 2015
 Strengthening of the social sector to be more commercial and less reliant on grant funding.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Build stronger social enterprises with the sector itself leading development of the sector.

Achievement will be measured through: 
 Develop a strategy to grow existing social enterprises.

2. Grow the capacity of the social enterprise sector and Alternative Delivery Models (ADM’s) to become 
more self-sustaining.

 Achievement will be measured through: 
 Monitoring the level of efficiencies ADMs have supported
 Establishing two new social enterprises operating in Flintshire through the ADM and 

Community Asset Transfer Programme
 Monitoring community benefits delivered by Community Asset Transfers

Tudalen 48



P a g e  33 | 38

3. Implement the Digital Strategy and resources to meet future customer needs.
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Development of an action plan to improve community access to digital services and to raise 
skill levels

 Review the Charter between Welsh Government and the Council for digital business to 
maximise the value of WG support to businesses in the County.

4. Ensuring and delivering community benefits.  
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Establishing a Community Benefits Board with an action plan
 Commissioning of two Council contracts with specific community benefits that provides the 

third sector with a competitive edge
 Monitoring the percentage of community benefit clauses included in new procurement 

contracts; and
 Increasing cultural connections.

5. Enabling the third sector to maximise their contribution.
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Increasing the number of volunteering placements.

6. Getting Flintshire active through partnership objectives via the Public Services Board.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Increasing participation in activities that contribute to physical and mental well-being 
including libraries, theatre and countryside

 Increasing community assets 
 Identity and equality of participation.

7. Ensure our Armed Forces Community and their families are not disadvantaged when accessing Council 
Services. 

Achievement will be measured through:
 Revising portfolio policies to reflect the ambitions of the Armed Forces Covenant
 Achieving Silver status for our Employee Recognition Scheme
 Optimising the value of the regional grant monies to support a 2 year programme.

Risks to manage: 
 The capacity and appetite of the community and social sectors
 The willingness of the workforce and Trade Unions to embrace change
 Market conditions which the new alternative delivery models face
 Limitations on public funding to subsidise alternative models
 Procurement regulations stifling our ability to develop local community and third sector markets

Tudalen 49



P a g e  34 | 38

 Newly established Social Enterprises and Community Asset Transfers failing in their early stages of 
development.

What we mean by:
Social Enterprise: Businesses with primarily social objectives whose surpluses are mainly reinvested for that 
purpose in the business or community.
Community Benefit Clauses: Benefits to local communities from major procurements e.g. training and 
employment opportunities, community facilities.
Alternative Delivery Models (ADMs): New approaches to service delivery designed to sustain important 
services and meet future need.
Community Asset Transfers (CAT): The leasehold transfer of a Flintshire County Council asset to an 
organisation with a social purpose who plans to use it for the benefit of the local community.

Tudalen 50



P a g e  35 | 38

Priority: Serving Council
Sub-Priority: Improving Resource Management
Impacts:  1)   Continuing to be a high performing and innovative public sector organisation with social values.

2) Providing high quality, accessible, responsive and cost effective public services.

This is a priority this year because we need to: 
 Manage with reducing resources
 Continue to aim high despite reduced financial and people resources
 Make the best use of our capability and capacity in challenging times
 Have the right buildings in the right places for the right uses
 Make our money go further through smarter purchasing
 Achieve the highest possible standards of customer services.

National Policy Issues:
 Reduction in capital investment and resources
 Ongoing austerity policies
 Non-funding of new legislative and policy commitments.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Develop and implement a renewed five year financial plan that reflects anticipated funding, costs 

and efficiencies to support strategic decision making over the life of the new council.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Increasing achievement rate of the budgeted efficiency targets to 95%
 Revising our plan to meet the relevant funding gap for 2017-2022
 Matching our priorities with revenue and capital investment
 Ensure sustainable business plans for service portfolios
 Develop a range of operational financial performance indicators.

2. Through the People Strategy we aim to operate effectively as a smaller organisation.
Achievement will be measured through: 

 Improving attendance
 Attainment of attendance and appraisal targets
 Increasing the number of managers and employees attending and accessing stress related / 

management programmes 
 Percentage of employees who have secured employment following completion of 

apprenticeship training 
 A single consolidated workforce plan and supporting action plan.

Tudalen 51



P a g e  36 | 38

3. Maximise benefits from spending power through optimised purchasing efficiencies by exploiting 
technology and making efficient use of local, regional and national procurement arrangements. 

Achievement will be measured through: 
 % of goods, services and works procured through purchasing arrangements established by 

the National Procurement Service (NPS)
 % of Council spend with Welsh businesses
 % of Council spend with Flintshire businesses.

4. Develop and deliver a programme of activity to support local businesses, increasing their capacity 
and competency to respond to Council contracts.

Achievement will be measured through:
 Development of a programme to support local businesses
 Developing and delivering training and support to improve the inclusion of community 

benefits in Council contracts 
 Developing a system to record and monitor Community Benefits centrally.

5. Delivery of key annualised objectives from the Digital Strategy and Customer Strategies. 
Achievement will be measured through:

 Increasing the number of services available online and via the Flintshire App
 Increasing the take-up of online services
 Responding to customer feedback ensuring information is accessed at first point of contact 

online
 Development of action plans to deliver the Digital Strategy 
 Deliver agreed actions from the Digital Strategy for 2017/18.

6. Delivery of key annual objectives from the Capital and Asset Management Strategy.
Achievement will be measured through:

 Critically challenging our current estate, continue with the programme of asset 
rationalisation, ensuring that assets retained are effective, efficient and sustainable to 
deliver services

 Identifying and considering options available to fund capital expenditure that minimise the 
ongoing revenue implications of historic capital expenditure and of any new investments

 Establishing effective arrangements for managing capital projects including assessment of 
outcomes and achievement of value for money.

Tudalen 52



P a g e  37 | 38

Risks to manage: 
 The scale of the financial challenge
 The capacity and capability of the organisation to implement necessary changes.

What we mean by:
Procurement Collaborations: Ways of purchasing goods and services within agreed terms and conditions.
NPS – National Procurement Service: Welsh Government sponsored organisation established to procure 
common and repetitive spend across public sector organisations in Wales. 
Flintshire App: ios and android application to enable contact with FCC and find out about available services
Community Benefits: Benefits to the local community through delivery of Alternative Delivery Models and 
procurement of services and works.

Tudalen 53



P a g e  38 | 38

Statement of Responsibility

On-going review about the Council’s priorities and this plan is available through our website where feedback 
forms are available for the public, our partners, our workforce and businesses. We would like to know what you 
think about our priorities and those for the future. We would value your feedback and hope that you can spend 
a few minutes to tell us what you think. 

In the meantime our contacts for any initial observations are: 

Corporate Business and Communications Team: 
Tel: 01352 701457 
Email: Christopher.x.phillips@flintshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 54



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Council Plan 2017/2023

How achievement will be measured - 
Supporting milestones and measures 

Connected Council

T
udalen 55



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

P a g e  2 | 6
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

Priority Sub-Priority Impact

Connected 
Council

Resilient 
Communities

 Supporting local communities to be resilient and self-supporting
 Committing to resilient service models to sustain local public services
 Widening digital access to public services

1. Build stronger social enterprises with the sector itself leading development of the sector.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Develop a strategy to grow existing social enterprises

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Develop a range of tools such as community shares that enable existing social enterprises to grow and develop by March 2018 

Measures are to be adopted for 2018/19 following development of a strategy to support existing social enterprises by March 2018T
udalen 56



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

P a g e  3 | 6
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

2. Grow the capacity of the social enterprise sector and Alternative Delivery Models (ADM’s) to become more self-sustaining.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Monitoring the level of efficiencies ADMs have supported
 Establishing two new social enterprises operating in Flintshire through the ADM and Community Asset Transfer Programme
 Monitoring community benefits delivered by Community Asset Transfers

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Establishing two new social enterprises of a significant scale operating in Flintshire through the ADM and Community Asset Transfer Programme by 

December 2017
 Reporting of community benefits delivered by Community Asset Transfers by March 2018
 Establishing programmes for adults with learning disabilities into secure paid employment by March 2018

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
The monetary value of efficiency supported by ADMs N/A £0.5M £1M

The number of primary school meals provided each financial year 
through the ADM Newydd Catering and Cleaning 5350 5403 5511

The number of secondary school meals provided each financial year 
through the ADM Newydd Catering and Cleaning 5029 5129 5232

Number of leisure centres and libraries sustained through the community 
benefits society  11 11 11

The number of key community asset transfers sustained by new social 
enterprises, Connah’s Quay Swimming Pool, Holywell Leisure Centre, 
Mynydd Isa Community Centre and Library

Chief Officer – 
Organisational 

Change

3 3 3

Community Benefits delivered by ADMs and CATs to be reported on each year.

T
udalen 57



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

P a g e  4 | 6
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

3. Implement the Digital Strategy and resources to meet future customer needs.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Development of an action plan to improve community access to digital services and to raise skill levels
 Review the Charter between Welsh Government and the Council for digital business to maximise the value of WG support to businesses in the 

County.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Development of an action plan to improve community access to digital services and to raise skill levels by March 2018
 Review the Charter between Welsh Government and the Council for digital business to maximise the value of WG support to businesses in the 

County by March 2018
 

Measures are to be adopted for 2018/19 following development of the action plan to improve community access to digital services and a review of the 
Charter between WG and the Council by March 2018

4. Ensuring and delivering community benefits.  
Achievement will be measured through:
 Establishing a Community Benefits Board with an action plan
 Work with the third sector to increases its capacity to successfully bid for and undertake contracts on behalf of the Council. 
 Monitoring the percentage of community benefit clauses included in new procurement contracts; and

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Establishing a Community Benefits Board with an action plan by December 2017
 Creation of guidance/handbook on appropriate Community Benefits to include in contracts based on the nature of the contract and  the value by 

March 2018

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
Percentage of community benefit clauses in new procurement contracts 
above £1M 100% 100% 100%

Percentage of community benefit clauses in new procurement contracts 
under £1M N/A 100% 100%

Let two contracts that are targeted for third sector/social enterprises; 
Housing Voids and Household Recycling Centres

Chief Officer – 
Organisational 

Change

0 2 2

T
udalen 58



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

P a g e  5 | 6
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

5. Enabling the third sector to maximise their contribution.
Achievement will be measured through:
 Increasing the number of volunteering placements.

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target

Number of volunteering placements created
Chief Officer – 
Organisational 

Change
548 548 548

6. Getting Flintshire active through partnership objectives via the Public Services Board. 
Achievement will be measured through:
 Increasing participation in activities that contribute to physical and mental well-being including libraries, theatre and countryside
 Increasing community assets
 Identity and equality of participation.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Report on the sports and arts development work that has taken place to increase participation by individuals and communities that have lower 

levels of engagement within sports and arts activity by March 2018

Achievement Measures Lead 
Officer

Baseline 
Data (2016/17)

2017/18 
Target

2018/19
Aspirational 

Target
PAM/016 Number of visits to libraries per 1000 population 3935 4014 4094

PAM/017 Number of visits to leisure centres per 1000 population 8740 7296 7296

Number of visits to the theatre 167,000 175,000 180,000

The number of leisure and cultural assets that are cooperatively 
supported by a range of partners ensuring they remain accessible to 
their local communities 

Chief Officer – 
Organisational 

Change
2 11 11

T
udalen 59



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 – ‘How we Measure’

P a g e  6 | 6
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

7. Ensure our Armed Forces Community and their families are not disadvantaged when accessing Council Services. 
Achievement will be measured through:
 Revising portfolio policies to reflect the ambitions of the Armed Forces Covenant
 Achieving Silver status for our Employee Recognition Scheme
 Optimising the value of the regional grant monies to support a 2 year programme.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans: 
 Revising portfolio policies to reflect the ambitions of the Armed Forces Covenant by March 2018
 Achieving Silver status for our Employee Recognition Scheme by March 2018
 Optimising the value of the regional grant monies to support the Armed Forces Community by March 2018 

Measures are to be adopted for 2018/19 following revised and updated policies to reflect the ambitions of the Armed Forces Covenant by March 2018

T
udalen 60



ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Monday 25th September 2017

Report Subject Forward Work Programme

Cabinet Member Not applicable

Report Author Democratic Services Manager

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the 
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members.  By 
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to 
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues.  A copy of the Forward Work 
Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been 
updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward 
Work Programme for the Organisational Change Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and 
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Democratic Services Manager, in consultation with the Chair and 
Vice-Chair of the Committee be authorised to vary the Forward Work 
Programme between meetings, as the need arises. 

Tudalen 61

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 6



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.01 Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number 
of sources.  Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can 
be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council 
or Chief Officers.  Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet 
Work Programme and the Improvement Plan.

1.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of 
significance’ to be applied.  This can be achieved by asking a range of 
questions as follows:

1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
2. Is it an area of major change or risk?
3. Are there issues of concern in performance?
4. Is there new Government guidance of legislation?
5. Is it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 None as a result of this report.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 None as a result of this report.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 – Draft Forward Work Programme

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None.

Contact Officer: Robert Robins
Democratic Services Manager

Telephone: 01352 702320
E-mail: robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 62

mailto:robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk


7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of 
the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Tudalen 63



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Organisational Change Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Forward Work Programme 2017/18

Page 1 of 2

DATE SUBJECT O&S FOCUS REPORT FROM

Monday, 27th 
November 2017
10am

Social Care ADM Review
(members of the Social & Healthcare Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee could be invited to attend for this 
item)

Quarter 1 improvement plan monitoring Report

Monitoring and assurance

Monitoring and assurance

Ian Bancroft/Neal 
Cockerton

Ian Bancroft and Neal 
Cockerton

Monday 18th 
December 2017 
10am

Quarter 2 Improvement Plan Monitoring report

Forward Work Programme

Monitoring and assurance

Development and approval

Ian Bancroft/Neal 
Cockerton

Robert Robins

Monday 29th 
January 2018
10am

Connah’s Quay Swimming Pool Community 
Asset transfer review 

Forward work programme

Monitoring and assurance

Development and approval

Neal Cockerton/Ian 
Bancroft

Robert Robins

Monday 19th 
March 2018  
2pm

Quarter 3 Improvement Plan Monitoring Report

Forward Work programme

Monitoring and assurance

Development and approval

Neal Cockerton/Ian 
Bancroft

Robert Robins

T
udalen 65



Organisational Change Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Forward Work Programme 2017/18

Page 2 of 2

Monday 14th May 
2018     10.00 am

Monday 25th June 
2018       2.00 pm

T
udalen 66



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 67

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 7
Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 73

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 87

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol


	Rhaglen
	3 Cofnodion
	4 Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol - Adolygiad o Gynnydd
	5 Cynllun y Cyngor 2017-23
	Appendix 1 - Draft Council Plan 2017-18
	Appendix 2: Proposed “How we Measure” document - Connected Council

	6 Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol
	Appendix 1 – Draft Forward Work Programme

	7 Adolygu Model Darpariaeth Amgen Hamdden a Llyfrgelloedd
	Enc. 1 for Leisure and Libraries Alternative Delivery Model Review
	Enc. 2 for Leisure and Libraries Alternative Delivery Model Review


